
 
 
 

Date: December 27, 2019 
 
Re:    19ITBC122339B-RD Wireless Communication Services and Devices    
 
 
Dear Bidders: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 2, hereby made a part of the above-referenced 
Invitation to Bid-Commodities (ITBC).   
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the ITBC referenced above 
remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Rodney E. Dority 
 
 Assistant Purchasing Agent 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 19ITBC122339B-RD Wireless Communication Services and Devices 
 December 27, 2019 
 Page 2 
 
 

This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original ITBC 
documents as noted below: 
 
 
Section 1, Instructions to Bidders, 1. Contract Documents has been revised as 
follows: 
 

  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 

The Contract Documents include the Contract Agreement, Contractor's Bid (including 
all documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-Bid documentation required by 
the County prior to the Notice of Award), Bonds, all Special Conditions, General 
Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, Specifications, Drawings and addenda, 
together with written amendments, change orders, field orders and the Project 
Manager's written interpretations and clarifications issued in accordance with the 
General Conditions on or after the date of the Contract Agreement.  

 
 The Contract Documents shall define and describe the complete work to which 
  they relate. 

 
1.  Question:  Page 18, Item G. Special Support Requirements- Public Safety Network and 
Equipment with Secure Provisioning and Account Requirements, bullet 4.  Vendor respectfully 
requests that the County complete the following changes to the fourth bullet of Section G of the 
Technical Specifications of the ITB. The proposed changes would allow the County to have more 
options that meet the County’s needs, while maintaining desired functionality, and would allow for a 
fair and level playing field for interested vendors that encourages maximum free and open 
competition in satisfying the County's needs: Provide Fulton County with access to a dedicated Public 
Safety network for automatic preemption and that that allows staff dedicated and to access to priority 
calling Provide Fulton County with access to a dedicated network that allows County Key and 
Executive users to escalate to preemption in the event of an emergency. We, at Verizon, look forward 
to providing services to support the Fulton County Government‘s present and future mobility needs. 
Should you require clarification on any aspect of this submission?  

 

Answer:  The County will not be changing verbiage of the ITB to reflect the question 
 
2.  Question:  Page 17, Item C Special Plan Requirements, Bullet 4 The County has not specified a 
make and model for the 335 Basic Phone units it has in its inventory. Would the County please advise 
of the make and model of the equipment that will be used for this category. Additionally, please 
indicate whether the county will be providing the equipment for this requirement.  With respect to the 
335 standby phones, the ITB contains the following additional language. “Note: If fees for this service 
are handled differently, reflect the discount in pricing, or make a change to the pricing model as 
provided in Section 11. Pricing Forms; Make the appropriate notation in Section 11. C. Other One 
Time and/or Monthly Services Fees.”  Would the County please clarify these requirements as the 
Vendor is unable to locate a corresponding reference in the pricing documents or the inventory list. 



 

 

Answer:  The phones in reference are included in our Samsung count.  The devices are 
currently Samsung S7’s. 
 
3.  Question:  Page 17, Item D Wireless Communications Services – Functional Requirements to be 
included as part of basic service, subpart n.  The Vendor requests additional clarification regarding 
this requirement: “Push to Talk- Ability to communicate directly with another device on the 
respondent’s network. This item may be addressed over the same network or via a separate distinct 
network.” Would the County please confirm if a Push to Talk type service is included in its current 
agreement, and if so, please clarify if the service billed separately or included within the monthly 
service charge? Fulton County Government 2. 
 
Answer:  The County requires that all users are able to activate the “Push to Talk” feature the 
bidders network. 
 
4.  Question:  Page 19, Item I. Support Requirements, Technical Support, bullet 2, Replacement of 
broken or lost equipment. Would the County please resolve the number conflict in the existing 
language which currently reads “to be accomplished within seven (5) work days for standard 
(available devices).” We, at Verizon, look forward to providing services to support the Fulton County 
Government‘s present and future mobility needs. 
 
Answer:  Five (5) work days for standard (available devices). 
 
5.  Question:  Within the Bid document, there is a listing of devices and estimated quantities provided 
on pages 3-9(of the recent addendum).  The County also provided a listing of current inventory within 
the Scope of Work section in the bid document, which contains quantities that are different from the 
previous section.  I wanted to clarify that this distinction is intentional and that we should be pricing 
our devices based upon the estimated quantities set forth, as opposed to the current inventory count. 
Your clarification is appreciated. 
 
Answer:  The distinction is intentional to account for growth. 
 
6.  Question:  It appears that all the equipment is based on ATT SKUs which some will be locked to 
ATT or are SKUs that are ATT carrier specific.  If bidding T-Mobile connectivity will Fulton County 
accept similar equipment SKUs that are compatible with the T-Mobile network? 
 
Answer:  The responsive bidder will replace all equipment as necessary and will have the 
ability to support data services on the equipment that is data only on their specified wireless 
network. 
 
7.  Question:  Is any of the exiting equipment out of contract?  The reason for this question is some 
device models such as Apple may be factory unlocked and can be eligible for activation on the T-
Mobile network which is part of our connectivity bid. 
 
Answer: The responsive bidder will replace all equipment as necessary and will have the 
ability to support data services on the equipment that is data only on their specified wireless 
network. 
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8.  Question:   Is Fulton County interested in a Buy Back quote for their existing equipment? 
 
Answer:  Buy back quotes will be requested after a contract is awarded, BOC approved and 
executed. 
 
9. Question:  Is Fulton County looking for a competitive bid on Wireless service?   
 
Answer:  The current bid is out for competitive solicitation. 
 
10. Question:  Are comparable alternate options accepted for items that are unavailable or hard to 
find? 
 
Answer:  Comparable alternate option will be reviewed and accessed by the County to 
determine if the alternate solution will meet the County needs. 
 
11. Question:  Although the ITB didn’t list any SMB or F/MBE goals, would this be considered a 
value add to the county on this opportunity? 
 
Answer:  Fulton County does not have a SMB or F/MBE goals at this time. However, The 
County does encourage good faith effort for SMB and F/MBE. 
 
12. Question:  Does the county prefer/require a bill directly from the carrier or would an invoice from 
an authorized partner of the carrier suffice? 
 

Answer:  The Bill should be submitted from the vendor awarded the Wireless Communication 
Services and Devices contract. 
 
13. Question:  Who is the current provider and how long has this agreement been in place? 
 
Answer:  The current provider is A&T has been the awarded vendor for approximately 3 years. 
 
14. Question:  The County identified net new replacement devices under Group II, does the county 
plan on having these devices in inventory at the vendor or county site? 
 
Answer:  The devices should be available through ordering from the vendor and available 
inventory onsite with the County as needed. 
 
15. Question:  Is Fulton County interested in newer technology operating on 4G and 5G as opposed 
to current technology on 2G and 3G? 
 
Answer:  Yes.  The County states on page 12 of the Statement of Work that it is seeking a 
Cellular Network of 4G speeds or greater. 
 



 

 

16. Question:  Does Fulton County require proposed equipment to be identical to the models listed or 
will comparable or superior models be accepted? 
 
Answer:  The County states in solicitation that the equipment proposed can be the same or 
comparable.  Superior models will be accepted. 
 
17. Question:  Are the deskphones connecting to the Tellular Hub analog or digital? 
 
Answer:  This solicitation is for Mobile devices. 
 
18. Question:  Will Fulton County provide the IMEI for the following products:  
• All tablet models (both Apple and Samsung) 
• Rockets 
• Panasonic laptop – Please provide the model number of the laptop 
 
Answer:  The County will provide the information to the successful vendor upon award, BOC 
approval and contract execution. 
 
19. Question:  For the Sierra PCIE M.2 Module - which module is needed, the EM73xx or EM74xx?  
Can we also get the IMEI number for the modules? 
 
Answer:  The bidder must provide a PCIE M.2 Module that is compatible for the Rocket.  The 
County will provide IMEI information to the successful vendor upon award, BOC approval and 
contract execution. 
 
20. Question:  What type of equipment is used for the Security Scanners?   Please provide make 
and model. 
 
Answer:  The County is not requesting information on Security Scanners. 
 
21. Question:  Will Fulton County provide the make/model/and manufacturer of cradle for Helicopter 
phone, Kyocera Dura XT? 
 
Answer:  The bidder must provide a phone and cradle equivalent or comparable to the 
Kyocera Dura XT. 
 
22. Question:  Will Fulton County provide pricing for all current products and services included in the 
bid document? 
 
Answer:  No.  The bidder must provide proposed pricing as part of the solicitation response. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO.2, 19ITBC122339B-RD, Wireless 
Communication Services and Devices.   
   
The undersigned Proposer acknowledges receipt of this Addendum by returning one (1) 
copy of this form with the Bid submittal package to the Department of Purchasing & 
Contract Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety Building 130 Peachtree Street, S.W., 
Suite 1168, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by Monday, December 30, 2019 at 11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 2, _________ day of ____________, 
2019. 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder/Proposer 
 
       
________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 
 
 
 
 
 


